
 

Local Government North Yorkshire and York 

 
Enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Ruth Gladstone Tel: 01609 532555 or email 

ruth.gladstone@northyorks.gov.uk.  Agenda and papers available via www.northyorks.gov.uk 
OFFICIAL 

 

Notice of a public meeting of Local Government North 
Yorkshire and York 

To: Councillors Keith Aspden (City of York Council) (Vice-
Chair), Mr Jim Bailey (North York Moors National Park 
Authority), Richard Cooper (Harrogate Borough Council), 
Mark Crane (Selby District Council), Angie Dale 
(Richmondshire District Council) (Chair), Richard Foster 
(Craven District Council), Mr Neil Heseltine (Yorkshire 
Dales National Park Authority), Dinah Keal (Ryedale 
District Council), Carl Les (North Yorkshire County 
Council) (Vice-Chair), Mark Robson (Hambleton District 
Council) and Steve Siddons (Scarborough Borough 
Council). 

Date: Friday, 15 October 2021 

Time: 2.30 pm 

Venue: Remote meeting 

 

AGENDA 
 

Anybody can watch this meeting live on YouTube via the following link – 
https://youtu.be/TZ8rbQ61WNw 
 
The meeting will be available to view once the meeting commences, via the following link - 
www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings  
 

Business 
 
1.   Substitutions and Apologies for Absence 
  
  
2.   Declarations of Interest 
  
  
3.   Minutes of the Meeting held on 2 July 2021 and Matters Arising 
 (Pages 3 - 6) 
  
4.   LEP Update 

Report of James Farrar (Chief Operating Officer of the York and North Yorkshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership) 

 (Pages 7 - 14) 
  

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/
https://youtu.be/TZ8rbQ61WNw
http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings


 
OFFICIAL 

5.   Devolution Asks Review - Verbal update by James Farrar (Chief Operating Officer 
of the York and North Yorkshire Local Enterprise Partnership) which replaces the 
report that was previously published and circulated 

  
  
6.   Arrangements for Future Meetings 

The following arrangements have previously been made and notified to all LGNYY 
Members:- 

 Friday 10 December 2021 at 2.30pm (finishing 4.30pm) – Virtual meeting 

 Friday 11 March 2022 at 3.00pm (finishing 5pm) – Virtual meeting 

 Friday 1 July 2022 at 2.30pm (finishing 4.30pm) – Virtual meeting 

 Friday 14 October 2022 at 2.30pm  (finishing 4.30pm) – Virtual meeting 

 Friday 9 December 2022 at 2.30pm (finishing 4.30pm) – Virtual meeting 
  
  
7.   Business for Next Meeting 
  
  
8.   Any Other Business 
  
  
 
 
Richard Flinton 
Honorary Secretary to LGNYY 
 
County Hall 
Northallerton 

Page 2



 

 
OFFICIAL 

Local Government North Yorkshire and York 
 
Minutes of the remote Annual Meeting held on Friday, 2nd July, 2021 commencing at 3.00 pm. 
 
This meeting was live broadcast and a recording is available using the following link - 
https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/live-meetings 
 
Present: LGNYY Members Councillor Keith Aspden (in the Chair at the start of the meeting), 
Mr Jim Bailey, Councillors John Clark, Richard Cooper, Mark Crane, Angie Dale and 
Richard Foster, Mr Neil Heseltine and Councillors Carl Les and Mark Robson. 
 
Chief Executives in attendance: David Butterworth, Tony Clark, Ian Floyd, Mike Greene, Tom 
Hind, Dr Justin Ives, Barry Khan (as Substitute for Richard Flinton), Wallace Sampson OBE, Paul 
Shevlin and Louise Wood (as Substitute for Stacey Burlet). 
 
Other Attendees: James Farrar (Chief Operating Officer of York and North Yorkshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership) and Ruth Gladstone (LGNYY Secretariat). 
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Steve Siddons and Janet Waggott. 
 

 
Copies of all documents considered are in the Minute Book 

 

 
111 Appointment of Chair to serve for 2021/22 

 
Resolved – 
 
That Councillor Angie Dale (Richmondshire District Council) be appointed as LGNYY 
Chair to serve for 2021/22. 
 

 
Councillor Angie Dale in the Chair 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

112 LGNYY Membership 2021/22 
 
Considered - 

 
 The report of the Honorary Secretary listing the names of Authorities’ representatives on 

LGNYY for 2021/22. 
 
 Resolved - 
 
 That the report be noted. 

 
113 Appointment of two Vice-Chairs to serve for 2021/22 

 
Resolved - 
 
That the following Members be appointed as LGNYY Vice-Chairs to serve for 2021/22:- 
 
• County Councillor Carl Les (North Yorkshire County Council) 
• City Councillor Keith Aspden (City of York Council) 
 
 
 Page 3

Agenda Item 3

https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/live-meetings


 

 
OFFICIAL 

114 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

115 Minutes of the Meeting held on 5 March 2021 
 
Resolved – 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 5 March 2021, having been printed and 
circulated, be taken as read and be confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

116 LEP Update 
 
Considered – 
 
The report of James Farrar (Chief Operating Officer of the York and North Yorkshire LEP) 
providing an overview of the national LEP Review and considerations for York and North 
Yorkshire local authorities; progress on reviewing the devolution asks; and progress with 
capital programmes (Local Growth Fund and Get Building Fund). 
 
In introducing the report, James Farrar highlighted that the project currently at highest risk 
relating to delivery within Get Building Fund timescales was Thornton Road in Pickering.  
James Farrar provided an undertaking to Councillor John Clark (Ryedale District Council) 
to contact him, in addition to Ryedale District Council officers, if any action or assistance 
was required by that Council to ensure that the Thornton Road project progressed to 
timescale. 
 
Resolved – 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

117 Nominations to Outside Bodies for 2021/22 
 
Considered - 
 
The report of the Honorary Secretary inviting LGNYY to nominate Members to four outside 
bodies to serve for the forthcoming year, and to take a view on the length of the term of 
nomination of York and North Yorkshire’s Vice-Chair of the Climate Commission. 
 
James Farrar advised verbally that Councillor Steve Siddons had been re-appointed to 
represent Scarborough Borough Council on York and North Yorkshire LEP Board. 
 
Resolved – 
 
(a) That, in respect of the York, North Yorkshire and East Riding European Structural 

and Investment Funds Sub-Committee:- 
 

(i) The Members listed below be nominated to serve for the forthcoming year:- 
 

1. From the City of York Council – Councillor Darryl Smalley 
2. From North Yorkshire County Council - County Councillor Andrew Lee 
3. From the 7 District Councils – Councillor Stephen Arnold (Ryedale 

District Council) 
 
 
 
 

 Page 4



 

 
OFFICIAL 

(ii) The following be nominated as Substitutes to serve for the forthcoming year:- 
 

1. From the City of York Council – Cllr Andrew Waller 
2. From North Yorkshire County Council – Councillor Carl Les 
3. From the 7 District Councils – Cllr John Clark (Ryedale District Council) 
 

(b) That, in respect of North Yorkshire Pension Fund Committee, Councillor Jim Clark 
(Harrogate Borough Council) be appointed as the District Councils’ representative 
for the forthcoming year and that Councillor Angie Dale (Richmondshire District 
Council) be nominated as Substitute for the forthcoming year. 

 
(c) That, in respect of the York and North Yorkshire LEP Board:- 
 

(i) Councillor Mark Crane (Selby District Council) be nominated as the District 
Council Leader representing the Leaders of Craven, Harrogate and Selby 
District Councils. 

 
(ii) Councillor Mark Robson (Hambleton District Council) be nominated as the 

District Council Leader representing the Leaders of Ryedale, Hambleton 
and Richmondshire District areas. 

 
(d) That, in respect of representation during the forthcoming year on the Yorkshire and 

Humber Strategic Migration Group, Neil Irving (North Yorkshire County Council) 
and Ann-Marie Douglas (City of York Council) be nominated as the two 
representatives and Jonathan Spencer (North Yorkshire County Council) be 
nominated as Substitute for either Neil Irving or Ann-Marie Douglas. 

 
(e) That the term of appointment of the York and North Yorkshire Vice-Chair of the 

Yorkshire and Humber Climate Commission be reviewed at the time when the new 
unitary council/councils is/are formed. 

 
118 Arrangements for Future Meetings 

 
Resolved – 
 
That the following LGNYY meeting arrangements, as previously advised, be noted:- 
 

 Friday 15 October 2021 at 2.30pm (finishing 4.30pm) – Virtual meeting 

 Friday 10 December 2021 at 2.30pm (finishing 4.30pm) – Virtual meeting 
 

119 Business for Next Meeting 
 
Resolved – 
 
That items of business for the next meeting be notified to Richard Flinton. 
 

120 Any Other Business 
 
There were no other items of business for this meeting. 
 

The meeting concluded at 3.15 pm. 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

    
 

 OFFICIAL 

Local Government North Yorkshire & York 

15 October 2021 

LEP Update 

Report of the Chief Operating Officer 

1.0 Purpose of the Report  
1.1 This report provides an update on the work of the York & North Yorkshire LEP in resepct 

of :   

 Capital Funding Delivery - Getting Building Funding. 

 Plan for Growth 

 LEP Review Progress 
 

1.2 The Board is requested to note the details set out in the report.  
 

2.0 Capital Funding – Getting Building Fund 
2.1 The Local Growth Fund (LGF) grant programme ended on 31st March 2021. As reported 

previously, in addition to utilising the full LGF award of £83,213,138, the programme end 
out-turn included a final balance for over-commitment is £2,178,390, which was met 
from YNY LEP Growing Places Funding.  
 

2.2 Previous reports have set out details of the Getting Building Funding (GBF) programme, 
which was launched by HM Government in Spring 2020 as part of the response to the 
pandemic. It offered opportunity for grant investment in capital projects, to be selected 
on their potential to provide short to medium term economic stimulus and growth to 
support recovery from the pandemic through delivery of jobs, skills and infrastructure. All 
GBF grant activity must be completed with financial closedown by 31 March 2022, 
however, reporting of outputs as a result of investments can continue up to March 2025. 
Annex 1 provides a progress summary for all projects 

 
2.3 The programme operates broadly on the same principles as the Local Growth 

Programme. The programme funding was split by MHCLG equally between financial 
years, and grant was paid in two instalments. 
 

 

 

 

 

2.4 The 2020/21 programme out-turn was on target at £7,700,000.    
 

2.5 Delivery for 2021/22 remains on track, however the project for delivery of employment 
land development at Thornton Road, Pickering has a range of complex issues – 
including land ownership, contamination, and strategic gas infrastructure easements - 
that have presented increased risk for delivery within the timescales remaining for GBF 
funded activity by 31st March 2022. The project is of strategic significance to northern 
Ryedale and demand analysis shows that there is still strong market interest in the 
proposed development. The project is supported by Ryedale District Council (RDC). The 
GBF grant amount for the project is £880,000,.  
 

September 2020 
Payment 
(2020-21) 

April 2021 
Payment  
(2021-22) 

Total Funding 
Allocated 

Additional 
Capacity 
Funding  

£7,700,000 £7,700,000 £15,400,000 £55,000 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

 OFFICIAL 

 
2.6 In the event that the project is delayed beyond the current programme, it is likely that 

there will be insufficient time remaining to re-allocate any GBF grant that may be un-
spent by March 2022, and it would potentially be lost from the YNY LEP area. The LEP 
is therefore proposing, subject to approval by the Infrastructure Board to follow a similar 
process to the one which was successfully implemented for Local Growth Funding and 
to utilise Growing Places reserved to over-commit the programme and to mitigate the 
risk identified above.  
 

2.7 Subject to approval, the mitigation will be linked to the North Yorkshire Digital 
Infrastructure project, which originally requested £5million of GBF grant, but was scaled 
back by agreement with the project in response to the slightly reduced overall GBF 
award to the YNY LEP. At that time, the principle of re-visiting the North Yorkshire 
Digital Infrastructure project was agreed, in the event that additional funds may come 
available, to allow activity to be scaled up again. The proposed over-commitment will 
require approval of £316,000 which is proposed to be met from the Growing Places 
Funding reserve, to enable the additional work identified by the North Yorkshire Digital 
Infrastructure project to proceed within the timescales for GBF programme delivery, and 
to minimise delivery risk for the Thornton Road, Pickering project.  
    

3.0  Plan for Growth 
3.1 In March 2020, as part of the HM Governments Budget announcement, a National Plan 

for Growth, ‘Build Back Better’, was published. This Plan for Growth focused on three 
pillars of investment to ‘act as the foundation on which to build the economic recovery’. 
These being Infrastructure, Skills and Innovation and in pursuing these would lead to 
‘levelling up the country, a net zero carbon economy and a vision for Global Britain’. 
This National Plan for Growth supersedes the National Industrial Strategy.  
 

3.2 Within this context and with further announcements due regarding Levelling Up Funding 
and the UK shared Prosperity Fund and the pending changes to Local Government 
structures, Devolution and the Combined Authority in York and North Yorkshire; now 
seems an opportune time for York and North Yorkshire to set out its own Plan for 
Growth.  
 

3.3 It is proposed that our Plan is therefore aligned to the National Plan for Growth and will 
be built on the foundations set out in our Local Industrial Strategy (agreed in March 
2020), our Reshaping the Economy post Covid 19 Plan (October 2020), and draft 
Devolution Deal (December 2020); and takes forward our overall vision of a Greener 
Fairer Stronger economy – A carbon negative, circular economy that increases 
productivity and provides higher paid jobs. 

 
3.4 Fig 1: York and North Yorkshire Plan for Growth the next step in Responding to Covid-

19  

 Page 8



 

 OFFICIAL 

  
 
 
3.5 The purpose of a York and North Yorkshire Plan for Growth is to set the economic 

strategic framework: 

 That builds on the agreed Local Industrial Strategy and aligns other 
economic strategies across YNY;  

 That provides the basis for future bids to and influence for the 
Governments Shared Prosperity Funding and further Levelling up 
Funding. 

 That forms the framework for attracting and levering private sector 
investment into York and North Yorkshire 

 That sets out the next step in how York and North Yorkshire can recover 
and grow post Covid 19; 

 That enables partners and stakeholders to work together to achieve 
ambitious economic outcomes for York and North Yorkshire; 

 That helps to drive forward the economic agenda for the Devolution Deal, 
the new Local Government structure and proposed Combined Authority in 
YNY; and 

 That clearly shows how YNY can make a significant contribution towards 
the Governments ambition for a Global Britain, Levelling up and Net zero. 

 
3.6 This Plan will be developed in a way that: 

 Engages and aligns all workstreams across the LEP; 

 Fully engages the LEP Board and Sub Boards in the process; 

 Seeks the views of stakeholders and gets their buy in;  

 Has a clear governance and ownership. 
 

3.7 As outlined above, it is proposed that the Plan for Growth is framed in a way that can 
clearly speak not only to partners but also to Government. It will therefore be structured 
around the national Plan for Growth’s Pillars of Growth, which includes Infrastructure, 
Skills and Innovation, and the also the Levelling-Up agenda, Net Zero and Global Britain 
ambitions.  
 

3.8 In developing this structure, the YNY Plan for Growth will identify three strategic 
objectives based on the national Plan for Growth ambitions which align to the York and 
North Yorkshire vision of a Greener (Net Zero), Fairer (Levelling up) and Stronger 
(Global Britain) economy. Building on previous plans and strategies, it is proposed that 
these are focused as follows: 
 

 Green Future Focus (Greener) – Ambition to be the first carbon negative 
region – contributing the Governments ambition to be net zero. 

 People and Places Focus (Fairer) – Ambition to reshape and transform 
our places and ensure our people have great opportunities – contributing 
to the Government’s Levelling up agenda. 

 Sector Focus (Stronger) – Ambition for a stronger, innovative and more 
productive economy – contributing to the Government’s ambition of a 
Global Britain. 
 

3.9 To help this Plan for Growth underpin the principles of good growth, we would also look 
for the plan and investments to be aligned and contribute to the UN Sustainable 
Development Goals. This will support identifying defined outputs and measures for the 
plan.The 17 UNSDGs are 

Page 9



 

 OFFICIAL 

 
 

3.10 Stakeholder and partner engagement and consultation forms a critical part of the 
process for developing our Plan for Growth. It is proposed that this is undertaken at 
different stages of the Plans development and engagement has taken place with Local 
Authority Economic Development Officers, Directors of Development and Chief 
Executives alongside the LEP Board and Sub-Boards.  
 

3.11 The first stage will be a series of round table ‘think tank’ discussions. These will be held 
in October and will provide some forward thinking and horizon scanning under a series 
of topic areas. Stage two will be a much wider engagement during October and 
November and will help to further develop the ambitions, priorities and actions or 
investments within the Plan. Finally, a further consultation and engagement process will 
be held in January and February to seek partner endorsement of the Plan. 
 

3.12 Timeline 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
4.0 LEP Review 
4.1  The outcome of the LEP Review was not received as expected, prior to the summer 

 recess. The Cabinet Reshuffle has further delayed progress and the outcome is now 
 expected alongside the Levelling Up White Paper. A verbal update will be provided on 
 the day. 
 

5.0  Recommendations  
It is recommended that:  

 LGNYY note progress with the Getting Building Fund 

 Support development of a York and North Yorkshire Plan for Growth 

 Note the ongoing uncertainty surrounding the LEP Review 

1st

September 
21

Report to 
DoDs

6th

September 
21

Initial Plan 
framework, 

themes 
completed

24th

September 
21

LEP Board 
meeting

Initial process 
and framework 

to be agreed

10th

October 21

Outline of 
Plan 

structure 
completed

October/No
vember

Stakeholder
engage-

ment and 
Con-

sultation

17th

December 
21

Final draft 
of Plan 

completed

Stakeholder 
and Partner 

endors-
ement

25th March 
22

PfG final 
Plan sign off

Page 10



 

 OFFICIAL 

 

ANNEX 1  
 

Getting Building Funding: Programme Update Summary 
 
 

Project Delivery Progress  
North Yorkshire Digital 
Infrastructure  

Project in delivery. 
https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/news/article/north-yorkshires-town-
centres-benefit-wi-fi-switch 
 
https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/news/article/free-public-access-wi-fi-
launches-scarborough 
 
Approvals have been confirmed to increase GBF grant from £3 
million by total additional of £600,000 subject to availability of funds 
within the programme. This has enabled the GBF allocation to be 
increased initially by £300,000. Plans are in place to mobilise a 
further £300,000 of delivery across North Yorkshire subject to 
availability of funds – refer to Section 4 of the report.   
 

Pickering – Thornton Road Extensive preparatory work has been undertaken by developer to 
manage and mitigate risks on this long standing development site, 
currently owned by Northern Gas Networks and subject to potential 
contamination and gas infrastructure easements, but under option 
to developer (Lindum Group). Risks mainly relate to delivery within 
GBF timescales (i.e. by 31 March 2022) but following recent 
progress with land acquisition the Funding Agreement is being 
progressed to coincide with completion of land purchase end of 
September 2021. Ryedale DC is a partner with the developer for 
provision of managed workspace as an outcome of the investment. 
Risk mitigation is proposed as set out in Section 4 of the report. 
 

Whitby Business Park Project in delivery – extension to existing earlier phases of Whitby 
Business Park, developed by Scarborough BC, supported by 
Growing Places Funding. 
 

A19 Chapel Haddlesey 
 

Project completed early June slightly ahead of schedule – 
resumption of works due to flooding was quicker than expected 
(photo of floods Jan 2021 shows new section of elevated road at 
bottom left corner). 
https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/news/article/opening-rebuilt-vital-
a19-link-welcomed 
 

 
 
 
 Page 11

https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/news/article/north-yorkshires-town-centres-benefit-wi-fi-switch
https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/news/article/north-yorkshires-town-centres-benefit-wi-fi-switch
https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/news/article/free-public-access-wi-fi-launches-scarborough
https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/news/article/free-public-access-wi-fi-launches-scarborough
https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/news/article/opening-rebuilt-vital-a19-link-welcomed
https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/news/article/opening-rebuilt-vital-a19-link-welcomed


 

 OFFICIAL 

Digital Skills Academy, 
Askham Bryan 

Construction started in summer 2021 and is due to complete by 
March 2022 

 
 
 

Scarborough TEC – EV 
Skills Training Facilities  

Project physically completed for capital equipment purchase and 
installation  

 
 
 

York College – EV Skills 
Training Facilities  

Project physically completed for capital equipment purchase and 
installation  
 

Harrogate West Business 
Park 

Funding agreement completed – construction work commenced on 
site May 2021, including on-site developments levered by GBF 
investment  
 

 
 

Page 12



 

 OFFICIAL 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

Digital Hub – Northallerton 
E-Campus 

Project in delivery – operating agreements in place with delivery 
partners York College and University of Sunderland  

 
 

York Guildhall Fit-Out Project in delivery – fit out scheduled end of 2021 
City of York Council current progress video shows removal of tower 
crane via River Ouse https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=H7VYk-
ecBzE 
 

 

Page 13

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=H7VYk-ecBzE
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=H7VYk-ecBzE


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 2 July 2021 and Matters Arising
	4 LEP Update

